
PO Box 388 / 388 Blohm Avenue 
Aromas, CA 95004 
Phone: (831) 726-3155  FAX: (831) 726-3951 
www.aromaswaterdistrict.org 

Next Res. # 2022-22 

All public records relating to an agenda item on this agenda are available for public inspection at the time the record is distributed 
to all, or a majority of the board.  Such records shall be available at the District office located at 388 Blohm Avenue, Aromas, CA. 

REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

AGENDA 
TUESDAY, November 22, 2022, 7:00 PM 

The Aromas Water District Board of Directors meeting will be held at the District office.  
Staff and public may attend the meeting remotely or in person. Public participation is 

encouraged – remote participation instructions are on the following page. 
 

I. CALL TO ORDER 

II. ROLL CALL OF DIRECTORS: President Jim Leap, Vice President Vicki Morris, Directors Marcus 
Dutra, Richard Smith and Wayne Holman. 

III. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

IV. STATEMENTS OF DISQUALIFICATION 

V. ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS 

VI. MINUTES: Review the Minutes of the October 25, 2022, Regular Board Meeting for Board approval. 

VII. ORAL COMMUNICATION: Anyone wishing to address the Board on informational items, staff reports 
or matters not listed on the agenda may do so.  Please limit your comment to three (3) minutes. The public 
may comment on listed Action and Public Hearing items at the time they are considered by the Board. 

VIII. PRESENTATIONS & REPORTS 
A. DIRECTORS' REPORTS 
B. ATTORNEY'S REPORT 
C. MANAGER'S REPORT 
D. CORRESPONDENCE 

IX. ACTION ITEMS: 

A. Presentation of Annual Financial Report for the Fiscal Years Ended June 2022 and 2021 
Fedak & Brown staff will present the Annual Financial Report for the Fiscal Years Ended 2022 and 
2021 for Board review and approval. (DRAFT Annual Financial Report attached) 

B. Consider receiving a report regarding the possible annexation of one parcel located on Rocks 
Road (APN: 012-090-026-000), and providing direction to staff 
Staff will present a report on the possible annexation of 940 Rocks Road, for discussion and Board 
action. 

C. Financial Reports for the Month of October 2022 
Including both Assessment Districts, the financial reports show a Total revenue of $134,111.07; Total 
expenditures were $152,358.35 between October 20, 2022, and November 15, 2022. These financials 
and monthly expenditures will be presented for discussion and Board approval. 

X. FUTURE MEETINGS & AGENDA ITEMS – Next meeting – December 27, 2022 (new BOD) 

XI. ADJOURNMENT 

 
 

 
 

President- James Leap 
Vice President- Vicki Morris 
Director- Marcus Dutra 
Director- Richard Smith 
Director- Wayne Holman  
General Manager- Robert Johnson 
Board Secretary- Louise Coombes 

p.6-9 
p.10 

p.3-5 

p.11-69 

p.73-78 

p.70-72 



PO Box 388 / 388 Blohm Avenue 
Aromas, CA 95004 
Phone: (831) 726-3155  FAX: (831) 726-3951 
www.aromaswaterdistrict.org 

2 

Hybrid Meeting Attendance Instructions 

The public may participate in the District’s Board meeting either in person, or by teleconference / web 
conference via the instructions provided below.  In person attendees will be subject to current mask and 
distancing protocols. 

The meeting materials will be available for download from the District’s website at: 

www.aromaswaterdistrict.org 

For those who choose to attend this meeting via Zoom will be muted by default. To join the meeting from a 
computer, tablet, or smartphone via the Zoom app (free at http://www.zoom.us), click the link on the meeting 

date and time: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84336485664 

If you do not have speakers or a microphone on your computer, you can dial in for audio. 

Call (669) 900.9128 and enter the Webinar ID: 84336485664 

If you would like to speak during the public comment portion of the meeting, you have the following options: 

1. Online – raise your hand or use the Q&A panel to submit written comments. 

2. Phone – press *9 to raise your hand, *6 to send a request to be unmuted to submit verbal comments. 

The meeting officially will start at 7:00pm, though remote access will be open 
15 minutes before the start of the meeting. 

Public engagement is important to the District, and hybrid meeting protocols are an evolving process. 
We appreciate everyone’s understanding as we work through this together 

 



SECOND DRAFT 1 / 3 

Minutes of the Regular Meeting of 
the Aromas Water District Board of Directors 

October 25, 2022 
I. CALL TO ORDER. The regular meeting of the Aromas Water District Board of Directors was called

to order by President Leap on Tuesday, October 25, 2022, at 7:00 p.m. in a hybrid setting; attendees
were present both in the Board Room and online via Zoom.

II. ROLL CALL. President Leap, Vice President Morris and Directors Dutra, Holman and Smith were
present; also present was General Manager Johnson. Board Secretary Coombes and Counsel Bosso
attended via Zoom.

III. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE. President Leap led the pledge of allegiance.

IV. STATEMENTS OF DISQUALIFICATION. There were no disqualification statements.

V. ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS. There were no additions to, or deletions from, the Agenda.

VI. MINUTES. The minutes of the September 27, 2022, Board Meeting were presented for review and
approval. Director Smith moved for approval of the minutes as presented; Director Dutra seconded.
Minutes were unanimously approved with all Directors present.

VII. ORAL COMMUNICATION. There were no public comments.

VIII. REPORTS / IX.  PRESENTATIONS

A. Director's Report(s). There were no Director’s reports.

B. Attorney's Report. Counsel Bosso reported that the recent updates to AB361 simplified the process
of meetings in the event of an emergency. A separate meeting to declare the emergency status, or
acknowledge a statewide emergency no longer has to occur with all Directors present in person; instead,
they can attend such a meeting remotely. Any Director not present can only participate if adequate
notice is given (>72 hours) and their location is publicly posted. If there is not enough notice, the
Director can be present remotely, but cannot participate in Board decisions.

Secondarily, as a result of a recent case at the Supreme Court, Special Districts must ensure that
persons hired part-time for non-construction work must be paid the prevailing wage, with the
exception of professional consultants.

C. Manager’s Report

OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE
Production & Well Levels
Total production in September 2022 was 10,250,430 gallons, with a daily average of 341,681 gallons.
September’s production was about 4.6% lower than August 2022 and 17% lower than August 2013.

The District has 972 total connected meters.

Carpenteria and San Juan Wells were used for the entire month and Pleasant Acres was not used. All
water testing reports were filed on time and represent satisfactory results.

Operational well levels; Carpenteria Well is up five feet and San Juan Well is up four feet. Observational
wells; Marshall Well is up two feet and Aimee Meadows is up eight feet.

3



SECOND DRAFT 2 / 3 

INCIDENTS 
None to report. 

ADMINISTRATIVE 

Staff & Board Recognition 
WUSp Girõn is finalizing the Auditors’ adjusted journal entries. 

WUSp Girõn and Operator Smith continue the Valve Marking and Exercising Program in the field as 
other duties allow, information obtained will be returned to ASO Coombes to update data in the GIS 
mapping. ASO Coombes is also continuing to populate and correct the mapping with data. 

Operator Smith will be taking a Cross Connection training course in December. 

CO DeAlba and Operator Smith have been working on interior maintenance of the District’s Booster 
stations. 

GM Johnson has compiled all the invoices received from West Valley during the breaks that occurred 
during the recent construction work along Carr Avenue. These will shortly be sent to Granite 
Construction for recompense. 

PROJECTS 
Response to COVID-19 
Governor Newson is calling for the COVID Emergency to end in February 2023. 

New Well 
GM Johnson hired an Appraiser for the proposed replacement well site; this appraisal should be 
completed by mid-December. A permanent easement arrangement is likely. 

Orchard Hill Road proposed annexation progress 
Counsel Bosso and GM Johnson continue to answer questions on an ongoing basis. The requestors are 
working on recruiting other interested parties and arranging a public meeting to discuss alternative 
configurations. Meanwhile the temporary line is still in place. 

Cole and Rocks Road Annexation 
Still waiting for the recognition by the State Board of Equalization and the Authorization Agreement 
to be received by the District, customers can then be connected, beginning with those who have been 
waiting the longest and have already paid their fees. 

Conservation & Rainfall 
A new rainfall year began on October 1, 2022. To the time of this meeting, zero precipitation has been 
recorded by the rain gauge at Chittenden Pass. Last year’s precipitation was a 75% increase over the 
previous year. 

Correspondence: Director Smith enquired about the email regarding whether the District was 
interested in expanding from the Community Water Center. GM Johnson explained that the District 
would need to greatly increase the sphere of influence boundary in order to serve the Royal Oaks 
community. As this is a lengthy and expensive exercise and is not in the direction the District wishes 
to progress, this change to the boundary is unlikely to occur.  

4



SECOND DRAFT 3 / 3 

X. CONSENT CALENDAR
A. Consider adopting Resolution 2022-20 authorizing the continuation of hybrid/remote

teleconferencing meetings pursuant to AB 361.

Due to changes in the legislation AB361, this will be the last time that this Resolution is required.

Vice President Morris moved to adopt Resolution 2022-20 as presented; seconded by Director Smith.
The consent calendar was unanimously adopted by roll call vote with all Directors present.

XI. ACTION ITEMS

A. Consider approving a proposal from MNS Engineers, Inc. to develop a “Water System Capital
Improvement Plan” for the Aromas Water District.
There has been no agendized discussions at the Board or Committee level regarding a proactive Water
System Capital Improvement Plan, despite the fact that such a cost was included in this year’s capital
budget. The cost of the plan is $45,003, which is in line with the budgeted cost. This plan is fundamental
for a number of future projects to include improvement of water system operation, reliability and
sustainability plus drought sustainability, as well as being foundational to the upcoming Rate Study in
2024.

Director Holman moved to approve the MNS “Water System Capital Improvement Plan” proposal as
presented; seconded by Director Smith. The proposal was adopted with all Directors present; Directors
Holman, Leap, Morris and Smith voted “Aye” and Director Dutra voted “No”.

B. Financial Reports for the Month of September 2022
Total Assets / Liabilities & Equity are $16,549,025.45, of which Total Current Assets are
$10,358,565.91, and Total Fixed Assets are $6,041,339.54. In Liabilities, the Total Current Liabilities
are $329,729.26, Total Long Term Liabilities now stands at $9,687,340.61. In the P&L Report, Water
Revenue for September was $197,743.77. Total Expenditures were $142,455.76 between September
21 to October 19, 2022.

On the graphical representation of the Financials, when compared to the current budget there is 5.2%
difference of budgeted revenue versus actual income. The Expenditures had a 1.3% difference above
budget.

Vice President Morris moved to adopt the Financial Reports as presented; seconded by Director Smith.
With all Directors present, the Financial Reports were unanimously adopted by roll call vote.

XII. FUTURE MEETINGS & AGENDA ITEMS.

The next meeting date will be on Tuesday, November 22, 2022.

XIII. ADJOURNMENT. President Leap adjourned this meeting at 8:24pm.

Read and approved by:  ___________________________  Attest: __________________________ 
President, Jim Leap Board Secretary, Louise Coombes 

Date: _________________________  Date: _______________________ 

5



AWD – GM Report: October 2022 

PRODUCTION REPORT 

Totals 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 

Million Gal 106.15 110.17 123.42 105.97 91.27 88.152 95.304 102.07 98.141 107.1 102.07 88.370 

Acre Ft 325.7 338.05 378.7 325.16 280.05 270.49 292.43 313.18 301.13 328.8 313.19 271.15 

www.aromaswaterdistrict.org 

General Manager’s Report 
October 2022 

6



AWD – GM Report: October 2022 

OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE REPORT 

OPERATIONS: 
 There are 972 total meters installed.
 San Juan and Carpenteria wells were operated the entire month, while Pleasant Acres well was

used one day.
 Water Treatment Plant: finished water was free of both iron and manganese this month.
 Distribution testing for total Coliform; all samples were negative.
 All monthly DWR reports on Coliform, and Fe / Mn were filed on time.
 WTP filters are backwashed when necessary.
 Monthly Generator in-house 15-minute testing under load.
 Monthly well-level monitoring (see chart following this report in Board Packet).

MAINTENANCE: 
 Preventative maintenance and flushing were performed, as needed.
 Chlorine chemical pump maintenance and analyzer maintenance at all wells was performed.
 Additional maintenance tasks are being performed as time allows.

INCIDENTS: 
 None to report at the time of this writing

ADMINISTRATIVE REPORT 

STAFF & BOARD RECOGNITION:  

 WUSp Girõn and Operator Smith are working on a Valve Marking and Exercising Program.
This program will establish clear markings for system valves, as well as exercise all the system
valves.

 Operator Smith will be attending a Cross Connection training course in December.

 ASO Coombes continues to work through mapping issues as new position data is collected and
incorporated into the GIS.

 CO DeAlba and Operator Smith have been working to upgrade the look of the District’s
booster stations.

 GM Johnson hired the services of an appraiser to appraise the potential replacement well site.
It was challenging to find a land appraiser that could complete this work before February 2023.
It is hoped that the District will have an appraisal to work with by mid-December.

CONSERVATION UPDATE: 
October 2022 usage figures show the expected decrease in usage as fall arrives.  September’s 
use was 10,250,430 gallons and October’s usage was 9,173,527 gallons, a decrease of 1,076,903 
gallons or about 10.5%.   

October 1, 2022, marked the start of a new water year. As of the date of this report (November 
16), the rain gauge at Chittenden Pass has recorded 2.68 inches of precipitation, all falling this 
month. As a reminder, last year’s precipitation total (October 2021 to September 2022) was 
16.60 inches.  

7



AWD – GM Report: October 2022 

PROJECTS: 

1. Response to COVID-19 virus
Staff has been staying current on the ever-changing COVID-19 situation.  There have been
recent changes in a couple of areas: 1) The mask mandate has been lifted for vaccinated people;
however, staff cannot evaluate the vaccination status of those who enter the office, therefore,
masks are required for customers to enter, 2) the plexiglass screen in front of the WUSp was
removed, and 3) staff has stopped recording body temperature upon entry to the office.

Note: Governor Newsom is calling for the COVID Emergency to end in February 2023.

2. Orchard Hill Road proposed annexation progress
MNS Engineers released an updated Technical Memorandum (TM) that the interested parties
have reviewed.  GM Johnson and AWD Counsel have provided answers to this group’s
questions.  It is now up to them to take the next steps to move this proposal forward.  These
steps include, but are not limited to requesting a public meeting to present alternatives and
answer additional questions.

3. Progress on the Cole Road Outreach / Annexation Project
This annexation effort is now complete except for one task – recognition by the State Board of
Equalization.  The District sent in the related fees last month, though they were sent back –
seems there is an issue at San Benito County.  Installations will begin once the issue is worked
out, and there will be a priority given to those who have paid their fees already, and those who
have been waiting the longest.

4. Progress on Finding a New Water Source Project
An appraiser has been hired and he will begin work in November.  The appraisal will be received
by the District before the Board meeting.  Some preliminary information may be available at
that time

5. Salary Restructuring request
Staff has requested management look into a salary restructuring or salary survey, comparing
District salaries to those of other similar water districts.  The Executive Committee of the Board
has been briefed and approved moving forward with the effort.

Robert Johnson 
General Manager 
November 16, 2022 

8



Ca
rp

en
te

ria
 W

el
l (

pr
od

uc
tio

n)
: P

re
vi

ou
s R

ea
d 

= 
27

9 
fe

et
; C

ur
re

nt
 R

ea
d 

= 
27

3 
fe

et
  

 M
ar

sh
al

l W
el

l (
m

on
ito

rin
g)

: P
re

vi
ou

sR
ea

d 
= 

76
 fe

et
; C

ur
re

nt
 R

ea
d 

= 
71

 fe
et

 

Sa
n 

Ju
an

 W
el

l (
pr

od
uc

tio
n)

: P
re

vi
ou

s R
ea

d 
= 

12
5 

fe
et

; C
ur

re
nt

 R
ea

d 
= 

11
7 

fe
et

  
 A

im
ee

 M
ea

do
w

s 
(m

on
ito

rin
g)

: P
re

vi
ou

sR
ea

d 
= 

20
7 

fe
et

; C
ur

re
nt

 R
ea

d 
= 

20
4 

fe
et

W
el

l W
at

er
 L

ev
el

 M
on

ito
rin

g
De

pt
h 

to
 W

at
er

 M
ea

su
re

m
en

ts
D

at
e:

 N
ov

em
be

r1
4,

 2
02

2

25
0

26
0

27
0

28
0

29
0

30
0

Ca
rp

en
te

ria

40 50 60 70 80 90

M
ar

sh
al

l

10
0

11
0

12
0

13
0

14
0

15
0

Sa
n 

Ju
an

18
0

19
0

20
0

21
0

22
0

23
0

Ai
m

ee
 M

ea
do

w
s

Ch
ar

t d
at

a 
sy

nc
hr

on
iz

ed
 to

 s
am

e 
st

ar
t d

at
e 

- M
ar

ch
 2

01
2

9



CORRESPONDENCE LIST: 10/20/2022 – 11/16/2022 

DATE 

T
Y

P
E

 

TO FROM SUBJECT 

10/14/22 M R Johnson, AWD E De La Cruz, USDA 
USDA Annual Reporting Requirements 

[Received Late] 

10/18/22 M J Leap, AWD M Scheafer, SDRMA 
President’s Special Acknowledgement 
Award – Worker’s Compensation Program 

10/25/22 E AWD S Mitchell, gWorks 
Softline Data, Inc., recently acquired by 
gWorks 

10/26/22 E AWD 
E Saucedo, Office of CA 
Attorney General 

CA DoJ Legal Alert: The Water Shutoff 
Protection Act 

10/26/22 E C Corral, et al R Johnson, AWD San Benito SB-1 – Water Main on Carr Ave 

10/26/22 E BARFleet L Coombes, AWD Annual Transmittal of Smog Report 

10/26/22 E C Corral, et al R Johnson, AWD San Benito SB-1 – Water Main on Carr Ave 

10/28/22 E R Johnson, AWD A Beck, Fedak & Brown 
Comments to Financial Report and related 
documents 

10/28/22 E AWD ACWA JPIA 
ACWA JPIA VectorSolutions Update: 
Local Agency Official Ethics Training 
(AB1234) Now Available 

10/28/22 E E De La Cruz, USDA L Coombes 
Response to USDA Annual Reporting 
Requirements 

10/28/22 E J Lawson, BoaVida R Johnson, AWD 
Formaldehyde analysis and Backflow 
purchase 

11/2/22 E AWD S Mitchell, gWorks Announcement Softline acquired by gWorks 

11/2/22 E A Beck, Fedak & Brown R Johnson, AWD 
Comments to Financial Report and related 
documents 

11/3/22 E L Chatar, SmartProcure E Girõn, AWD [Response to] Public Records Request 

11/10/22 E SWRCB E Girõn, AWD Monthly Fe & Mn Field Test Results 

11/14/22 E SWRCB E Girõn, AWD October Summary of Coliform Monitoring 

11/14/22 E J Taylor, Oakridge Drive R Johnson, AWD Response to request for renter’s water usage 

11/15/22 E A Beck, Fedak & Brown R Johnson, AWD 
Comments to Financial Report and related 
documents 

10



Staff Report 

To: Board of Directors 

Re: Item IX.A – Presentation of Audited Financial Statements for Fiscal Years 
Ended June 2022 and 2021 

Date: November 15, 2022 

Summary / Discussion 
The Aromas Water District (District) Board of Directors is charged with the fiduciary responsibility 
to oversee and protect the assets of the District. The District is under contract with Fedak & Brown, 
LLP, for the legally required annual auditing of its financial records.  These annual Financial 
Statements are the relied upon source of information detailing the District’s financial condition. They 
are utilized by our creditors, bond holders, as well as our state and county regulators.  They also 
provide a level of transparency for our stakeholders. 

The Financial Statements for review cover the 2021-2022 Fiscal Year, which is the twelve-month 
period from July 1, 2021, to June 30, 2022.  Also included in the report is a comparison to the previous 
year’s finances, Fiscal Year 2020-21.  This type of comparison has been presented in recent Financial 
Statement reports.  A copy of the DRAFT FINAL Financial Statements is included within this 
meeting’s packet. 

The Audit Committee is composed of Jonathan Abadesco, CPA, of Fedak & Brown, and from the 
District: Water Utility Specialist Girõn, and General Manager Johnson (usually a Board officer is part 
of this committee, but neither the Board President nor Vice-President were available when Mr. 
Abadesco was available).  The Committee plans to meet on November 21, 2022, at 3:00pm, for an in-
depth review of these Financial Statements before the presentation to the full Board at the meeting the 
next evening. 

Staff Recommendation 
Staff recommends that the Board accept the Financial Statements as presented. 

Submitted by: 
Robert Johnson 
General Manager 

11



DR
AF
T

12



DR
AF
T

AAAFAF

13



DR
AF
T

14



Government Auditing Standards 

DR
AF
T

GovernmeGov

15



DR
AF
T

16



DR
AF
T

17



Opinion

Basis for Opinion 

Government Auditing 
Standards

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial StatementsDR
AF
T

ment for thment for th

18



Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Required Supplementary Information DR
AF
T

Information Information 

19



Supplementary Information

Government Auditing Standards

Government Auditing Standards

Government Auditing Standards

DR
AF
T

rnment Auditing Standarrnment Auditing

20



DR
AF
T

21



Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

accrual basis of accounting

DR
AF
T

22



Management’s Discussion and Analysis, continued 

net position

financial position increases or decreases
financial health

not

DR
AF
TFTFTFTFTAAAFAFFFRARARARARARARARADRDRDRDRDD

23



Management’s Discussion and Analysis, continued 

DR
AF
TTTTTFTFTFTFTFTFTFTFTFTFTFTFT

24



Management’s Discussion and Analysis, continued 

DR
ARAA
FTTTTTTTTTFTFTFTFTAAAFAFRARARARAAAAADD

25



Management’s Discussion and Analysis, continued 

DR
AF
T

26



DR
AF
T

27



DR
AF
TTTTTFTFTFTFTFF

28



DR
AF
TFTFTFTFTFF

29



DR
AF
TTTTTFTFTFT

30



DR
AF
TFTFTFFFF

31



DR
AF
T

32



The Financial Reporting Entity

DR
AF
T

33



Leases.

Accounting for Interest Cost incurred Before the End 
of a Construction Period

Codification of Accounting 
and Financial Reporting Guidance Contained in Pre-November 30, 1989 FASB and AICPA 
Pronouncements,

Omnibus 2020

DR
AF
T

Accounting for InteAccounting for

ng Guidance Containeng Guidance Con

34



Replacement of Interbank Offered Rates

The Annual Comprehensive Financial Report. 

DR
AF
Tment of Intement 

35



DR
AF
T

36



Net investment in capital assets 

DR
AF
T

37



Restricted 

Unrestricted 
 net investment 

in capital assets restricted

Investment in State Investment Pool DR
AF
TTTFTFTFTFTFTFTTTTTTAFAF

38



Investments Authorized by the California Government Code and the District’s Investment Policy  

Custodial Credit Risk 

deposits

DR
AF
TFTFTTT

depositsdeposit

39



Custodial Credit Risk, continued 

investments 

Interest Rate Risk 

Credit Risk 

Concentration of Credit Risk 
DR
AF
T

40



DR
AF
TTTTTFTFTTTFTFTTTAFAFAF
T

AF
T

AF
T

AF
T

AFAFAFAF
DRDRDRDR

41



DR
AF
TFFFTFTAARARARRRR

42



Orchard Acres Assessment District, 2008 Limited Obligation Improvement Bond, Series A 

DR
AF
TTTTTFTFTFTFTFFAFAFAFAF
TTTT

ed Obligation Improvemed Obligation Im

DD

43



Assessment District No. 2013-1, Limited Obligation Improvement Bond, Series 2014 

City National Note Payable DR
AF
T

RARARARARARARARARRDRDRDRDRayable ayable

44



City National Note Payable, continued 

Truist Bank Note Payable 

DR
AF
TTTTT

DRDRDRDR

45



Plan Description DR
AF
TFTFTFTFTAA
TT

46



Benefits Provided 

Contributions DR
AF
TFTFTAFAFAFAFRARAAA
TT

47



Contributions, continued 

Net Pension Liability 

DR
AF
TTTTT

48



Deferred Pension Outflows (Inflows) of Resources 

DR
AF
T

RARAAARARARARAAA

49



Actuarial Assumptions

Discount Rate

DR
AF
T

50



Discount Rate, continued

Sensitivity of the Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate 

DR
AF
T

DR
AF
TFTFT

RARARRRRRRrtionate Share of Net Penrtionate Share of Net

51



Sensitivity of the Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate, 
continued

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position 

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 91 

Conduit Debt Obligations

DR
AF
T

52



Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 91, continued 

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 94 

Public-Private and Public-Public Partnerships and 
Availability Payment Arrangements

DR
AF
Tment No. 94 No. 94 

Public-Private andc-Priv

53



Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 96 

Subscription-Based Information Technology 
Arrangements

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 97 

Certain Component Unit Criteria, and Accounting 
and Financial Reporting for Internal Revenue Code Section 457 Deferred Compensation Plans—an 
amendment of GASB Statements No. 41 and No. 84, and a supersession of GASB Statement No. 32.

DR
AF
Tn Component Unit Critn Component Un

ection 457 Deferred Coection 457 Deferred C
nd a supersession of GAnd a supersession of GA

54



Grant Awards 

Litigation 

DR
AF
TT

55



DR
AF
T

56



DR
AF
T

57



DR
AF
T

58



C
ha

ng
es

 in
 B

en
ef

it 
Te

rm
s

C
ha

ng
e 

of
 A

ss
um

pt
io

ns
 a

nd
 M

et
ho

ds

DR
AF

TTTTTFFFTFTTTFFFTFTT

59



60



DR
AF

TTTTTTTTTTT

61



DR
AF
T

62



DR
AF
T

63



DR
AF
T

64



DR
AF
T

65



DR
AF
T

66



DR
AF
T

67



Government Auditing Standards

Government Auditing Standards

deficiency in internal control

material weakness

significant deficiency

Government Auditing Standards

DDR
ARAA
FTTT

G

TFTFTAFAFRA
F

RARARAll

DR
A

DRDRDRDDD

68



Government Auditing Standards, 

Government Auditing Standards

DR
AF
T

69



Staff Report 

To: Board of Directors 

Re: Item IX.B – Consider receiving a report regarding the possible annexation of 
one parcel located on Rocks Road (APN: 012-090-026-000), and providing 
direction to Staff 

Date:  November 16, 2022 

Summary / Discussion 
A request for water service has been received from Mr. Kwansoo Kang, who lives at 940 Rocks Road.  His 
parcel is within the District’s Sphere of Influence, though it is not a part of the annexed area.  Actually, it 
is adjacent to the recent Cole Road/Rocks Road annexation effort.  He was in the process of building his 
home, so his parcel was not included in that annexation project. 

Mr. Kang has researched the drilling of a new well, which is extremely costly, and there are no guarantees 
that a new test hole will produce the water needed, given the groundwater conditions in the area. 

As mentioned previously, Mr. Kang’s parcel is currently within the District’s sphere of influence, though it 
is not annexed into the District. 

Since Mr. Kang’s parcel is not annexed into the District, this action would initiate the annexation process 
similar to the ones the District has recently completed for Mr. Eilert, Mr. Capron (et. al.), Mr. Bravo and 
Mr. Martinez.  If the Board of Directors (BOD) approves of this request moving forward, then the process 
would involve going to the Pajaro Valley Water Management Agency (PVWMA) BOD, and the Local Area 
Foundation Commission (LAFCO) for specific actions and tasks to be completed.  Final approval does rest 
with the LAFCO Board. 

Staff Recommendation 
Receive the report and direct staff to go initiate and complete the annexation process with PVWMA and 
LAFCO, keeping the BOD apprised of the progress. 

Submitted by: 
Robert Johnson 
General Manager 

70



RESOLUTION 2022-21 

RESOLUTION OF APPLICATION OF THE AROMAS WATER DISTRICT 
INITIATING PROCEEDINGS FOR THE KANG  (APN: 012-090-026) 

ANNEXATION TO THE AROMAS WATER DISTRICT 

WHEREAS, the Aromas Water District (DISTRICT) desires to initiate a 
proceeding for the adjustment of boundaries specified herein. 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, the Aromas Water District 
Board of Directors hereby resolves and order as follows:  

1. This proposal is made, and it is requested that proceedings be
taken, pursuant to the Cortese/Knox/Hertzberg Local Government 
Reorganization Act of 2000, commencing with section 56000 of the 
California Government Code. 

2. This proposal is an annexation to the DISTRICT
3. A map of the affected territory is set forth in Exhibit A, attached

hereto and by reference incorporated herein. 
4. It is desired that the proposal be subject to the following terms

and conditions:  DISTRICT water will be utilized for municipal uses only. 
5. The reasons for the proposal are to: Health and Safety Issues

related to the lack of available water and the need to annex into the DISTRICT 
to receive DISTRICT water. 

6. The proposal is consistent with the Sphere of Influence of the
DISTRICT. 

7. Consent is hereby given to the waiver of conducting authority
proceedings. 

71



PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the Aromas Water 
District, Aromas, Monterey and San Benito Counties, California, at a Regular 
meeting duly held on this 22nd day of NOVEMBER by the following vote: 

AYES:  

NOES:  

ABSENT:  

ABSTAIN: 

APPROVE: 

_______________________________ 
James Leap, Board President 

ATTEST:  

___________________________ 
Board Secretary, Louise Coombes 

72



Oct 31, 22 Oct 31, 21

ASSETS
Current Assets

Checking/Savings
UB Checking 175,756.95 167,979.93
UB Bk Money Market xxxx7853 615,771.47 850,796.72
LAIF-State of Ca xx-05 6,547,389.88 836,698.94
Petty Cash 100.00 100.00
Assessment District Banks

OAWA US Bank 102 Reserve 38,451.21 38,200.66
OAWA Union Bank Checking 7741 18,865.08 30,443.11
Oakridge Union Checking 5587 357,789.57 342,943.58

Total Assessment District Banks 415,105.86 411,587.35

Total Checking/Savings 7,754,124.16 2,267,162.94

Accounts Receivable
1200 · Accounts Rec - Spec Proj/Taxes 15,058.34 0.00

Total Accounts Receivable 15,058.34 0.00

Other Current Assets
ACWA Deposit 0.00 2,080.80
1292 · Accounts Rec - USDA Loan 1,988,523.73 2,040,446.37
1291 · Accounts Rec - Orchard Acres 276,431.41 289,594.03
Prepaid Insurance 23,180.57 20,529.84
128 · Inventory 77,997.68 63,177.31
1200.1 · Accounts Receivable--UBMax 166,994.81 161,323.56
1201.9 · Less Allowance for doubtful Acc -500.00 -500.00

Total Other Current Assets 2,532,628.20 2,576,651.91

Total Current Assets 10,301,810.70 4,843,814.85

Fixed Assets
1900 · Water System 12,239,832.72 12,056,169.36
1910 · Construction in Progress 292,557.76 5,297.50
1915 · Office Building & Improvements 440,291.33 398,261.43
1970 · Office Equipment & Fixtures 93,467.05 93,467.05
1980 · District Vehicles 117,577.39 117,577.39
1990 · Land and Easements 331,195.78 331,195.78
1995 · Idle Assets 43,400.00 43,400.00
1998 · Less Accum Depr Idle Assets -42,400.00 -42,400.00
1999 · Less Accumuated Depreciation -7,492,178.75 -7,035,453.75

Total Fixed Assets 6,023,743.28 5,967,514.76

Other Assets
Deferred Outflow of Resources 136,914.00 149,120.00

Total Other Assets 136,914.00 149,120.00

TOTAL ASSETS 16,462,467.98 10,960,449.61

12:53 PM Aromas Water District
11/17/22 Balance Sheet Prev Year Comparison
Accrual Basis As of October 31, 2022

73



Oct 31, 22 Oct 31, 21

LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Liabilities

Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable

2000 · Accounts Payable 75,512.48 29,863.68

Total Accounts Payable 75,512.48 29,863.68

Credit Cards
First Bankcard - S Smith #0239 2,453.80 459.14
First Bankcard - E Giron #1086 0.00 77.03
First Bankcard -R.Johnson #9031 0.00 1,051.56
First Bankcard-L Coombes #3294 0.00 187.98
First Bankcard - D DeAlba #2486 248.28 0.00
Valero Fleet 260.43 464.30

Total Credit Cards 2,962.51 2,240.01

Other Current Liabilities
Accrued Sick Payable 5,016.44 3,177.04
Accrued Wages Payable 8,814.19 19,565.97
Current Portion City National 87,521.00 115,073.16
2100 · Payroll Liabilities 94.07 113.28
Deferred Inflows- Actuarial 335,224.00 4,337.00
CUSTOMER DEPOSITS

Water Customer 0.00 300.00
Connection Deposits Payable 17,500.00 2,000.00
Hydrant Meter Deposit 11,300.00 7,800.00

Total CUSTOMER DEPOSITS 28,800.00 10,100.00

Accrued Vacation Payable 44,338.03 34,129.54
Interest Payable 68,516.73 0.00
PVWMA Payable 15,650.22 16,966.25

Total Other Current Liabilities 593,974.68 203,462.24

Total Current Liabilities 672,449.67 235,565.93

Long Term Liabilities
Truist Bank 5,635,404.00 0.00
2392 · Long-term Debt - USDA (Oakrdge) 2,395,739.90 2,433,739.90
2391 · Long-term Debt - Orchard Acres 345,000.00 370,000.00
GASB 68 Pension Liability 384,014.00 608,060.00
City National Bank 693,136.71 750,538.78

Total Long Term Liabilities 9,453,294.61 4,162,338.68

Total Liabilities 10,125,744.28 4,397,904.61

Equity
Investment in Capital Assets 6,420,006.53 6,420,006.53
Unrestricted Net Assets 2,617,142.95 2,751,025.55
Allocation of Net Assets -2,637,574.59 -2,637,574.59
Net Income -62,851.19 29,087.51

Total Equity 6,336,723.70 6,562,545.00

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 16,462,467.98 10,960,449.61

12:53 PM Aromas Water District
11/17/22 Balance Sheet Prev Year Comparison
Accrual Basis As of October 31, 2022

74



Oct 22 Budget Jul - Oct 22 YTD Budget Annual Budget

Ordinary Income/Expense
Income

303 · Water Revenue 122,632.38 130,000.00 573,816.26 607,000.00 1,584,700.00
307 · Bulk Water 3,022.36 750.00 14,073.38 3,000.00 9,000.00
302 · Connection 0.00 0.00 30,800.00 32,340.00 80,850.00
301 · Taxes Rcvd - AWD

3090 · Oakridge / OAWA  Assess... 0.00 0.00 6,432.00 0.00 178,400.00
301 · Taxes Rcvd - AWD - Other 0.00 0.00 1,436.99 0.00 76,000.00

Total 301 · Taxes Rcvd - AWD 0.00 0.00 7,868.99 0.00 254,400.00

304 · Other Office Income & Reimbu... 0.00 125.00 11,143.97 500.00 1,500.00
306 · Interest 7,456.33 400.00 24,071.41 1,600.00 4,800.00
312 · Grant Revenue 1,000.00 0.00 1,200.00 0.00 1,000.00

Total Income 134,111.07 131,275.00 662,974.01 644,440.00 1,936,250.00

Gross Profit 134,111.07 131,275.00 662,974.01 644,440.00 1,936,250.00

Expense
Operations

403 · Fuel 2,577.27 1,485.00 8,921.45 7,260.00 16,500.00
404 · Truck Maint 1,273.95 688.00 3,177.23 2,746.00 8,250.00
431 · System Repair & Maint 17,354.70 6,416.00 47,202.16 25,664.00 77,000.00
463 · Water Analysis 352.00 596.00 2,891.00 2,382.00 7,150.00
464 · Water Treatment 952.94 1,980.00 12,769.42 9,680.00 22,000.00
468 · Tools 0.00 688.00 872.85 2,752.00 8,250.00
470 · Public Outreach / Annexation 3,600.00 350.00 4,711.81 1,400.00 33,000.00

Total Operations 26,110.86 12,203.00 80,545.92 51,884.00 172,150.00

Power
449.75 · 388 Blohm, # C 5.94 40.00 180.25 194.00 440.00
449.5 · 388 Blohm, A & B Office -100.82 168.00 100.02 822.00 1,870.00
461.5 · RLS Tank Booster -69.08 15.00 -42.49 73.00 165.00
447 · Leo Ln Booster -8.27 59.00 182.00 290.00 660.00
448 · Aimee Mdws Well -68.41 15.00 -43.11 73.00 165.00
451 · Marshall Corp Yard -30.10 50.00 81.52 239.00 550.00
452 · Rea Booster @ Seely -5.47 62.00 181.53 304.00 688.00
454 · Carr Booster 863.60 683.00 3,058.02 3,339.00 7,590.00
458 · Pleasant Acres Well 103.99 180.00 438.02 880.00 2,000.00
459 · Seely Booster @ Carpenteria 25.46 495.00 1,479.96 2,420.00 5,500.00
460 · San Juan Well 6,375.76 6,237.00 25,356.96 30,492.00 69,300.00
461 · Cole Tank 14.34 20.00 55.66 98.00 220.00
462 · Rea Tank -63.52 20.00 -21.40 98.00 220.00
465 - Lwr Oakridge Boost 47.04 149.00 373.36 723.00 1,650.00
465.5 - Upper Oakridge Booster 0.00 0.00 150.00 150.00 770.00
466 · Pine Tree Tank -64.81 20.00 -29.52 98.00 220.00

Total Power 7,025.65 8,213.00 31,500.78 40,293.00 92,008.00

Payroll
Gross 34,484.28 37,080.00 147,849.25 148,318.00 444,958.00
Comp FICA 2,130.89 2,299.00 9,165.76 9,195.00 27,587.00
Comp MCARE 502.25 538.00 2,153.73 2,148.00 6,452.00
Comp SUI 24.04 182.00 70.76 732.00 2,188.00

Total Payroll 37,141.46 40,099.00 159,239.50 160,393.00 481,185.00

Employee / Labor  Costs
407 · Outside Services 60.13 583.00 1,258.04 2,336.00 7,000.00
408 · Uniform Allowance 0.00 0.00 289.44 300.00 4,000.00
409 · Workers Comp 419.63 1,109.00 1,678.52 4,434.00 13,306.00
410 · Health Ins 5,803.08 5,949.00 28,939.44 23,795.00 71,387.00
474 · Education 1,563.78 667.00 1,670.39 2,664.00 8,000.00
477 · Retirement 3,071.56 3,500.00 77,595.36 76,000.00 104,015.00

Total Employee / Labor  Costs 10,918.18 11,808.00 111,431.19 109,529.00 207,708.00

12:51 PM Aromas Water District
11/17/22 Profit & Loss Budget Performance
Accrual Basis October 2022

75



Oct 22 Budget Jul - Oct 22 YTD Budget Annual Budget

Office
440 · Misc Exp 397.49 367.00 3,740.05 1,464.00 4,400.00
444 · Postage 411.55 315.00 1,464.00 1,260.00 4,400.00
445 · Office Supplies 117.52 367.00 615.26 1,468.00 4,400.00
446 · Office Eqpmt and Maint 1,540.26 2,200.00 2,930.01 4,900.00 16,500.00

Total Office 2,466.82 3,249.00 8,749.32 9,092.00 29,700.00

Communications
455 · Phone, Off 531.31 417.00 2,119.26 1,664.00 5,000.00
456 · Telemetry 780.75 625.00 3,123.00 2,500.00 7,500.00
457 · Answ Serv/Cellular Phone 381.66 350.00 1,439.70 1,400.00 4,200.00

Total Communications 1,693.72 1,392.00 6,681.96 5,564.00 16,700.00

Administrative & General
4591 · Admin Fee (Bond Admin N... 0.00 0.00 985.24 1,000.00 5,200.00
4590 · Bond Interest Exp - Assess... 0.00 0.00 59,399.79 64,600.00 128,000.00
417 · Capital Loan Interest 0.00 0.00 38,295.87 39,150.00 149,700.00
467 - Depreciation Reserve 47,017.00 47,017.00 188,064.00 188,064.00 564,199.00
405 · Election 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 5,000.00
406 · Liability Ins 2,129.02 1,667.00 7,975.84 6,664.00 20,000.00
420 · Legal Fees 1,400.00 1,417.00 6,424.26 5,664.00 17,000.00
422 · Bank Charges 150.32 167.00 546.52 664.00 2,000.00
423 · Litigation Contingency 0.00 833.00 0.00 3,336.00 10,000.00
425 · Audit 0.00 1,100.00 10,150.00 4,400.00 13,200.00
471 · Bad Debts 0.00 42.00 0.00 164.00 500.00
473 · Memberships 14,684.00 12,685.00 15,835.01 13,725.00 22,000.00

Total Administrative & General 65,380.34 64,928.00 327,676.53 327,431.00 936,799.00

Total Expense 150,737.03 141,892.00 725,825.20 704,186.00 1,936,250.00

Net Ordinary Income -16,625.96 -10,617.00 -62,851.19 -59,746.00 0.00

Net Income -16,625.96 -10,617.00 -62,851.19 -59,746.00 0.00

12:51 PM Aromas Water District
11/17/22 Profit & Loss Budget Performance
Accrual Basis October 2022

76



Date Num Name Amount

UB Checking
10/20/2022 EFT QuickBooks Payroll Service -7,302.04
10/21/2022 DD1864 Bowman (P), Naomi 0.00
10/21/2022 DD1865 Coombes (P), Louise P 0.00
10/21/2022 19000 DeAlba (P), David -2,943.18
10/21/2022 DD1866 Giron (P), Ester 0.00
10/21/2022 DD1867 Johnson (P), Robert L 0.00
10/21/2022 19001 Smith (P), Shaun -1,421.71
10/21/2022 19002 Dutra (P), Marcus -243.63
10/21/2022 19003 Holman (P), Wayne R -243.63
10/21/2022 DD1868 Leap (P), James E 0.00
10/21/2022 DD1869 Morris (P), Vicki 0.00
10/21/2022 DD1870 Smith (P), Richard 0.00
10/21/2022 EFT CalPERS -2,635.79
10/21/2022 EFT CalPERS -849.73
10/24/2022 19013 Cathy Vaughn -458.69
10/28/2022 Pd Online Charter Communications - Spectrum -97.98
10/28/2022 Pd Online Valero Fleet -843.22
10/28/2022 Pd Online Verizon Wireless -154.11
10/31/2022 EFT Bank Service Fees -159.32
11/02/2022 E-pay Employment Development Dept -738.62
11/02/2022 E-pay United States Treasury (EFTPS) -4,142.88
11/03/2022 EFT QuickBooks Payroll Service -6,557.67
11/03/2022 19016 ACE Hardware Prunedale -6.45
11/03/2022 19017 ACWA JPIA -16,747.00
11/03/2022 19018 ACWA JPIA, Emp. Ben. Prog. -5,651.16
11/03/2022 19019 AWWA -487.00
11/03/2022 19020 CALNET3 -740.08
11/03/2022 19022 CSSC -177.55
11/03/2022 19023 Ferguson Waterworks -3,039.61
11/03/2022 19024 Mid Valley Supply -952.94
11/03/2022 19025 Monterey Bay Solutions, LLC -225.00
11/03/2022 19026 Pajaro Valley Lock Shop -215.50
11/03/2022 19027 R & B Company -1,584.70
11/03/2022 19028 Recology San Benito County -60.58
11/03/2022 19029 Rob Johnson -50.00
11/03/2022 19030 Streamline -100.00
11/03/2022 19031 United Way serving San Benito County -32.00
11/03/2022 19032 USA BlueBook -679.46
11/03/2022 19033 West Valley Construction -9,088.76
11/03/2022 19034 XIO, INC. -474.00
11/03/2022 Wire Trans City National Bank -55,118.67
11/04/2022 DD1871 Bowman (P), Naomi 0.00
11/04/2022 DD1872 Coombes (P), Louise P 0.00
11/04/2022 19014 DeAlba (P), David -2,943.19
11/04/2022 DD1873 Giron (P), Ester 0.00
11/04/2022 DD1874 Johnson (P), Robert L 0.00
11/04/2022 19015 Smith (P), Shaun -1,432.22
11/04/2022 EFT CalPERS -2,639.96

Aromas Water District
11/17/22 Monthly Expenditures

October 20 through November 15, 2022

77



Date Num Name Amount

11/04/2022 EFT CalPERS -874.93
11/04/2022 19035 USPO -255.19
11/04/2022 Pd Online P G & E -7,238.76
11/04/2022 NSF Bill Adjustment Report -134.62
11/15/2022 19036 ACE Hardware Prunedale -178.43
11/15/2022 19037 Aldrige Backflow Specialist -5,250.00
11/15/2022 19038 Core & Main (Formerly HD Supply) -599.87
11/15/2022 19039 Interstate All Battery Center -63.31
11/15/2022 19040 Mid Valley Supply -1,143.53
11/15/2022 19041 MNS Engineers Inc. -926.25
11/15/2022 19042 Robert E. Bosso -1,400.00
11/15/2022 19043 West Valley Construction -3,055.43

Total UB Checking -152,358.35

TOTAL -152,358.35

Aromas Water District
11/17/22 Monthly Expenditures

October 20 through November 15, 2022

78




